
Televised Live, Government Channel WTRY  (10 WideOpenWest and 17 Comcast) Replayed Wednesdays 3:00 pm, 6:00 pm and 11:00 pm 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 
 MEETING AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 

 
 

Donald Edmunds, Chair, Tom Krent, Vice Chair 
Ollie Apahidean, Karen Crusse, Carlton M. Faison, Michael W. Hutson 

Padma Kuppa, Philip Sanzica and John J. Tagle 
   

February 9, 2016 7:00 P.M. Council Board Room 
   

 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. MINUTES – January 26, 2016 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING - SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 

REVIEW (File Number SU JPLN2015-0020) – Proposed Korean United Methodist Church 
Addition, West side of Dequindre, South of Square Lake (42693 Dequindre), Section 20, 
Currently Zoned R-1C (One-Family Residential) District 

 
SITE CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 

 
6.  PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SC JPLN2015-0016) – Proposed 

Estates at Willowbrook, 28 units/lots, East side of John R, South of Wattles, Section 24, 
Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
7. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
8. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City 

Clerk by e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  
An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 

500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3364 
www.troymi.gov 

planning@troymi.gov 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 26, 2016 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Edmunds called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:00 p.m. on January 26, 2016 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Ollie Apahidean Carlton M. Faison 
Karen Crusse Padma Kuppa 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent 
Philip Sanzica 
John J. Tagle 
 

Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle Wortman Associates 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-01-005 
Moved by: Apahidean 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Faison, Kuppa 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-01-006 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the January 12, 2016 Regular meeting as 
submitted. 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Faison, Kuppa 
 

MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 26, 2016 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Sanzica reported there was no Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) meeting in January. 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported on the January 13, 2016 Downtown Development Authority 
regularly scheduled meeting and the January 25, 2016 Joint City Council/Downtown 
Development Authority meeting. 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported on the following: 
 888 W Big Beaver; property going up for auction on February 8. 
 645 E Big Beaver; Crispelli’s Restaurant (former Big Beaver Tavern). 
 Conditional Rezoning Application; North side of Big Beaver between Troy and 

Frankton; two tenant restaurants. 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 
 
8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number JPLN2015-0016) – Proposed 

Estates at Willowbrook, 28 units/lots, East side of John R, South of Wattles, Section 24, 
Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reported on the Preliminary Site Condominium Plan application for Estates 
at Willowbrook specifically addressing the non-regulated wetlands, buffer of trees along 
the northern and eastern property lines, connection to the east with adjacent Wattles 
Square subdivision and the outlot in the southeast corner. Mr. Carlisle recommended 
Preliminary Site Plan approval of the application subject to the conditions as identified in 
his report dated January 20, 2016. 
 
Present were Nathan Robinson of Horizon Engineering and Joseph Maniaci of 
Mondrian Properties. 
 
There was discussion on: 
 Tree preservation along northern and eastern borders. 
 Interior landscaping. 
 Tree inventory; existing vegetation and brush. 
 Proposed landscaping as relates to the proposed Woodland Protection ordinance. 
 Stormwater management; drainage. 
 Maintenance responsibility of outlot. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 26, 2016 
  
 
 

3 
 

Mr. Savidant said maintenance of the outlot would be addressed through the Site 
Condominium Master Deed and Bylaws required to be filed and recorded prior to Final 
Site Plan approval. He addressed the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality 
(MDEQ) wetlands determination and regulations. 
 
Chair Edmunds opened the floor for public comment.  
 
Pete Wilkins, 3905 Wayfarer, addressed the drainage of water, tree preservation and 
clearing of brush. 
 
Paul Leitheiser, 3897 Wayfarer, addressed the tree inventory and asked if the developer 
would cut down the existing cottonwood tree on site. 
 
Fred Przybysz, 3842 Wayfarer, expressed traffic concerns with the opening of Dexter. 
He said a traffic problem exists now in Wattles Square subdivision that he has 
addressed with the Police Department. There is congestion with parked cars in the area 
of the path that connects to Barnard Elementary. 
 
Kelly Martin, 3884 Fairfax, expressed concerns with opening Dexter as relates to traffic, 
crime and safety. 
 
Chair Edmunds closed the floor. 
 
Discussion continued on landscaping and the outlot as relates to maintenance. 
 
Mr. Maniaci said he would comply with the conditions identified in the Planning 
Consultant report. He offered to cut down the cottonwood tree as requested by the 
homeowner during public comment. Mr. Maniaci offered no additional landscaping; he 
said the proposed site plan meets more than the minimum landscaping requirements. 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-01-   
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by:  
 

RESOLVED, That  Preliminary Site Condominium Approval, pursuant to Article 8 and 
Section 10.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for Estates at Willowbrook Site 
Condominium, 28 units/lots, East side of John R, South of Wattles, Section 24, 
Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District, be granted, subject to the 
following: 
 

1. Clarify maintenance responsibility for outlot prior to Final Site Plan Approval. 
2. Provide temporary turnaround at end of Sandpiper Drive and Macaw Drive. 
3. Widen John R sidewalk to 8 feet. 
4. Provide greater tree species variety.  
5. Resubmit floor plans for Final Site Plan. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 26, 2016 
  
 
 

4 
 

Mr. Motzny advised the applicant he could request a postponement of the matter until a 
full Board is present. 
 
Mr. Maniaci asked to postpone the item to the next Planning Commission meeting. 
 
(Motion on the floor failed for lack of support.) 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-01-007 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the item to the next meeting. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
The Board asked the applicant to come back with a maintenance plan for the outlot and 
to consider the buffer along the eastern property line. 
 
Roll call on the motion on the floor. 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Faison, Kuppa 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Edmunds requested a recess at 8:00 p.m.; the meeting reconvened at 8:10 p.m. 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 
9. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 247) 

– Oil and gas Extraction 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment. 
 
After a brief discussion, the members concurred the proposed language meets the 
intent of Planning Commission. 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-01-008 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Krent 
 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission, after review of the comments of Hal Fitch, 
John Griffin and Jim Nash in connection with the draft of the oil and gas extraction 
ordinance, believes the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment is in the best 
interest of the City of Troy and recommends that the City Council of the City of Troy 
adopt it as an ordinance. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 26, 2016 
  
 
 

5 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Faison, Kuppa 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

10. PLANNING COMMISSION 2015 ANNUAL REPORT 
 
There was a brief discussion as to the number of projects that have been completed. 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
12. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 

 
There were general Planning Commission comments. 

 
The Regular meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:35 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Donald Edmunds, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2016 PC Minutes\Draft\2016 01 26 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 



  PC 2016.02.09 
  Agenda Item # 5 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE: February 4, 2016 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING - SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 

REVIEW (File Number SU JPLN2015-0020) – Proposed Korean United Methodist 
Church Addition, West side of Dequindre, South of Square Lake (42693 Dequindre), 
Section 20, Currently Zoned R-1C (One-Family Residential) District 

 
The petitioner Korean United Methodist Church submitted the above referenced Special Use 
Request and Preliminary Site Plan Approval application for a 16,721 square foot addition to the 
existing church, to be used as a fellowship hall and multi-purpose space.  
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the application.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.  City Management supports 
the findings of fact contained in the report and recommends approval of the project, as noted. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3. Public Comment 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU JPLN 2015-0020 Korean United Methodist Church Addition  Sec 20\Korean Methodist PC Memo 02 09 2016.docx 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
 
SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 
JPLN2015-0020) – Proposed Korean United Methodist Church Addition, West side of 
Dequindre, South of Square Lake (42693 Dequindre), Section 20, Currently Zoned R-1C 
(One-Family Residential) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-02- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Request and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
improvements proposed for the Korean United Methodist Church Addition, West side of 
Dequindre, South of Square Lake (42693 Dequindre), Section 20, Currently Zoned R-1C 
(One Family Residential) District be (granted, subject to the following conditions): 
 
 
____________________________________________________________) or  
 

(denied, for the following reasons: _________________________________) or 
 

(postponed, for the following reasons:_________________________________) 
 
 
Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU JPLN 2015-0020 Korean United Methodist Church Addition  Sec 20\Proposed Resolution Korean 
Methodist 2016 02 09.doc 



42693 Dequindre, KUMC Addition

1: 2,200

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1830367 367Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

12/30/2015

Legend:

Aerial

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



42693 Dequindre, KUMC Addition

1: 3,000

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2500500 500Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

1/18/2016

Legend:

Form Based Zoning 2

(PUD) Planned Unit Development; (PUD-14) Planned Unit 
Development #14

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road

(MR) Maple Road

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MF) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales

Aerial

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



 
 
  Date:  February 1, 2016 
 
 

Conditional Use and Site Plan Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 

 
 
 
 
Applicant:   David Hardin 
   
Project Name:  Korean United Methodist Church Addition 
   
Plan Date:  December 28, 2015 
     
Location:  42693 Dequindre Road, south of Square Lake Road 
   
Zoning:  R1C One Family Residential  
       
Action Requested:  Site Plan Approval 
   
Required Information:  Deficiencies noted. 
  
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
  
The  applicant  is  requesting  site plan  approval  for  an  addition  and  site  improvements  for  an 
existing  place  of worship  located  on  Dequindre  Road,  south  of  Square  Lake.  The  proposed 
addition is 16,712 sq. ft., primarily sanctuary/assembly space.  The proposed addition is located 
in  the  rear of  the building  and will  require  reconfiguring  the existing parking  lot  and  adding 
landscaping and stormwater management. 
 
The  subject  site  is  zoned  R1C  One  Family  Residential.  The  building  will  remain  a  place  of 
worship, which is a special land use in the R1C Zoning District.  
   



Korean United Methodist Church 
February 1, 2016 

 

2 

 
Figure 1. Location of Subject Site 

 

 
Source: Google Earth 

 

General area 
of addition 



Korean United Methodist Church 
February 1, 2016 

 

3 

Figure 2. Zoning for Subject Site 

 
 

 
Source: City of Troy Zoning Map 

 
Table 1. Adjacent Properties 

 

  Master Plan  Zoning  Use 

North  Neighborhood Node  Neighborhood Node N  Vacant / Commercial 

South  Single Family Residential  R1C Single Family  Residential 

East  Single Family Residential  City of Sterling Heights  Residential 

West  Single Family Residential  R1C Single Family   Residential 

 
 
   

SITE



Korean United Methodist Church 
February 1, 2016 

 

4 

BUILDING LOCATION AND SITE ARRANGEMENT 
 
The  subject  site  is  improved with an existing  structure, currently used as a Place of Worship 
with associated site improvements.  The proposed addition is 16,712 sq. ft. and is located in the 
northwest corner of the existing building.   The addition consists of a 50 ft. by 67 ft. assembly 
space, a 48 ft. by 21  ft.  lobby; a 42  ft. by 30  ft.  fellowship hall, two  (2) preschool classrooms, 
and  two  (2)  large multi‐purpose  spaces  that  can be divided  into  seven  (7)  individual  rooms.    
The addition will be connected to the main building via an 8’ x 8’ vestibule.   
 
The applicant is proposing to reconfigure a portion of the existing parking lot to accommodate 
the proposed addition. Sidewalks are provided to building entrances from the parking  lot. The 
applicant is including additional landscaping and stormwater detention with site improvements. 
There  is  an  existing  1‐story  garage  located  in  the  rear  of  the  property.    The  applicant  is 
proposing to add curbing around the building.  
 
Items to be Addressed:  None 
 
AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
The subject site  is zoned R1C One Family Residential. Based on  the  information provided, we 
find the applicant has met the requirements of the R1C Zoning District as well as specific use 
provisions for Places of Worship, set forth in Section 6.21. 
 

Table 2. Adjacent Properties 
 

  Required  Provided  Compliance 

Places of 
Worship 

R1C     

Max. Building Height         

Stories    2 ½  1  Complies 

Feet    30 ft  21’‐4”  Complies 

Setbacks         

Front ‐ east  50 ft  30 ft  85’ (existing)  Complies 

Rear ‐ west  50 ft  40 ft  139’  Complies 

Side (Least) ‐south  50 ft  10 ft  120’  Complies 

Side (Total) ‐ north  100 ft  20 ft  267’  Complies 

Max. Lot Coverage    30 % 
Not Provided 

Additional 
info needed 

 
It appears that the applicant does not exceed the maximum lot coverage; however a calculation 
should be provided on the final site plan.   
 
Items to be Addressed: Provide lot coverage calculation.   



Korean United Methodist Church 
February 1, 2016 

 

5 

NATURAL RESOURCES 
 
Topography:  The subject site is generally flat. 
 
Woodlands:    The  subject  site  is  previously  developed.  The  survey  does  not  indicate 

existing woodlands  on  the  site.  There  are  trees  along Dequindre  Road 
and along the south property line. 

 
Wetlands:        The survey does not indicate existing wetlands.  
 
Stormwater:        The  applicant  has  shown  a  stormwater  detention  pond  north  of  the 

existing parking  lot.   A stormwater narrative  is provided on Sheet C‐4.1 
which  indicates  the  following:  The  existing  site  is  split  into  two  (2) 
detention systems –  the northern half and southern half.   The proposed 
improvements  will  not  affect  the  south  detention  system,  and  it  will 
remain as  is.    The proposed detention basin will provide  the additional 
storage  based  on  the  increase  in  impervious  area  due  to  the  proposed 
improvements  and  any  additional  volume  that  is  needed  to meet  the 
original design improvements. 

 
Soils:      The site is Selfridge loamy sand and Del ray loam. Drainage may be poor. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
PARKING, LOADING 
 

Table 3. Off‐Street Parking Requirements 

  Requirement  Required  Provided  Compliance 

Existing  1 space per 3 seat 
or 6 ft. of pews 

722 seats  
(241 spaces) 

387 spaces  Complies 

Addition  1 space per 3 seat 
or 6 ft. of pews 

288 seats 
(96 spaces) 

‐6 spaces  Complies 

Accessible  9 accessible 
spaces per 401‐
500 spaces 

9 spaces  10 spaces*  Complies 

Total    337  391  Complies  

 
As a result of the parking  lot reconfiguration, the applicant  is reducing the overall site parking 
by  six  (6)  spaces.    Even with  the  addition  and  the  loss  of  six  (6)  spaces,  the  applicant  still 
exceeds the minimum parking by over 50 spaces.  Parking is sufficient.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  None   
   



Korean United Methodist Church 
February 1, 2016 

 

6 

SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION 
 
The subject site is served by two (2) existing driveways off of Dequindre Road.  Site access will 
not be modified as part of  the proposed building expansion.   Traffic engineering  is  currently 
reviewing  the  application.    Their  comments  will  be  provided  for  the  Planning  Commission 
meeting.      
 
Items to be addressed:  Amend plans if directed by traffic engineering review.     
 
LANDSCAPING 
 
The applicant has provided a landscaping plan, sealed by a licensed landscape architect.  As an 
existing site, the applicant is responsible to comply with landscaping requirements for the new 
addition.   
 

Table 4. Landscape Requirements 

  Requirement  Required  Provided  Compliance 

Parking Lot 
Landscape 

1 tree per 8 
spaces 

17 / 8 = 3 trees  9 trees  Compliant with 
Planning 

Commission 
Approval 

Screening 
Requirements 

Screen Alt 1 or 2  Screen Alt 1 or 2  Existing 6’ brick 
wall 

Complaint with 
Planning 

Commission 
Approval    

 
Due  to  the parking  lot  reconfiguration,  the applicant  is  “disturbing” 17 parking  spaces.   As a 
result the applicant is required to provide 3 trees.  While these trees are not located within the 
parking  lot,  the  applicant  exceeds  the minimum  landscaping by  six  (6)  trees.      The Planning 
Commission may approve parking lot landscaping along the perimeter of the parking lot.   
 
A Place of Worship adjacent  to single‐family  residential  is  required  to screen with either one 
large evergreen every 10  feet or one narrow evergreen every 3  feet.   However,  the Planning 
Commission may approve of a screen wall as an alternative to the landscaping screening.  There 
is  an  existing  six‐foot  high  wall  along  the  perimeter  of  the  property.    The  existing  wall  is 
compliant with Planning Commission approval.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  Planning Commission to confirm that proposed parking lot landscaping 
and existing six‐foot high perimeter wall is sufficient.   
   



Korean United Methodist Church 
February 1, 2016 

 

7 

LIGHTING 
 
The  applicant  has  not  provided  a  lighting  photometric  plan,  and  does  not  indicate  any 
additional site lighting.  If additional site lighting is proposed, it shall comply with Section 13.05, 
and shall include the location and detail of any proposed pole‐ or wall‐mounted fixtures as well 
as illumination levels.  
 
Items to be Addressed:  None  
 
FLOOR PLAN AND ELEVATIONS 
 
The  applicant  has  provided  floor  plans,  elevations,  and  colored  perspective  for  the  building 
addition.  The materials appear to be brick. The applicant will be at the meeting to answer any 
questions regarding the architecture and material use.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  None 
 

SPECIAL USE 
 

Standards of Approval 
 
Places of Worship, and associated uses, are permitted in the R‐1C District subject to Special Use 
approval.        For  any  special use,  according  to  Section 9.02.D,  the Planning Commission  shall 
“…review the request, supplementary materials either  in support or opposition thereto, as well 
as the Planning Department’s report, at a Public Hearing established for that purpose, and shall 
either grant or deny  the  request,  table action on  the  request, or grant  the  request  subject  to 
specific conditions.” 
 
Section 9.03 states that before approving any requests for Special Use Approval, the Planning 
Commission shall consider: 
 
1. Compatibility with Adjacent Uses. The Special Use shall be designed and constructed  in a 

manner harmonious with the character of adjacent property and the surrounding area. In 
determining  whether  a  Special  Use  will  be  harmonious  and  not  create  a  significant 
detrimental impact, as compared to the impacts of permitted uses.  

 
The proposed use of the property remains a place of worship.   The expansion of the use of the 
property  is compatible with adjacent uses.   The applicant  is proposing  increased  landscaping 
and  the  maintenance  of  the  existing  six‐foot  high  wall  to  mitigate  impact  upon  adjacent 
properties.  
 
2. Compatibility with the Master Plan. The proposed Special Use shall be compatible and  in 

accordance  with  the  goals  and  objectives  of  the  City  of  Troy  Master  Plan  and  any 
associated sub‐area and corridor plans.  



Korean United Methodist Church 
February 1, 2016 

 

8 

 
The  Master  Plan  designates  the  subject  site  and  the  surrounding  area  as  single‐family 
residential.  The applicant is not altering the primary use of the property.  The continuation of 
the existing use  is  compatible with  the goals and objectives of  the City of Troy Master Plan.  
Furthermore, a primary goal of  the Master Plan  is  the preservation and protection of  single‐
family neighborhoods.   The applicant  is proposing  increased  landscaping and the maintenance 
of the existing six‐foot high wall to mitigate impact upon adjacent properties. 
 
3. Traffic Impact. The proposed Special Use shall be located and designed in a manner which 

will minimize the impact of traffic, taking into consideration: pedestrian access and safety; 
vehicle  trip  generation  (i.e.  volumes);  types  of  traffic,  access  location,  and  design, 
circulation and parking design; street and bridge capacity and, traffic operations at nearby 
intersections  and  access  points.  Efforts  shall  be  made  to  ensure  that  multiple 
transportation modes  are  safely  and  effectively  accommodated  in  an  effort  to  provide 
alternate modes of access and alleviate vehicular traffic congestion.  

 
The proposed use of the property remains a place of worship.   The traffic engineer is currently 
reviewing the plan.    
 
4. Impact on Public Services. The proposed Special Use shall be adequately served by essential 

public facilities and services, such as: streets, pedestrian or bicycle facilities, police and fire 
protection,  drainage  systems,  refuse  disposal, water  and  sewage  facilities,  and  schools. 
Such  services  shall  be  provided  and  accommodated  without  an  unreasonable  public 
burden.  

 
There should not be any additional  impact on other public services, such as police or utilities, 
beyond what would normally be experienced for like uses.  
 
5. Compliance with Zoning Ordinance Standards. The proposed Special Use shall be designed, 

constructed, operated and maintained to meet the stated intent of the zoning districts and 
shall comply with all applicable ordinance standards. 

 
The site complies with all zoning ordinance standards.   
 
6.    Impact  on  the Overall  Environment.  The  proposed  Special Use  shall  not  unreasonably 

impact the quality of natural features and the environment  in comparison to the  impacts 
associated with typical permitted uses. 

 
The site has been graded and used  for a place of worship.   The applicant  is not affecting any 
onsite natural resources and is improving stormwater management with the installation of the 
detention pond. 
 
7.   Special Use Approval Specific Requirements. The general standards and requirements of 

this  Section  are  basic  to  all  uses  authorized  by  Special Use  Approval.  The  specific  and 



Korean United Methodist Church 
February 1, 2016 

 

9 

detailed  requirements  relating  to  particular  uses  and  area  requirements must  be  also 
satisfied for those uses. 

 
The applicant has met all Special Use Specific Requirements. 
 
Items to be addressed: None.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
We find that:  
 

 The proposed use of the property remains a place of worship, and the expansion of the 
use of the property is compatible with adjacent uses. 

 The applicant  is proposing  increased  landscaping and  the maintenance of  the existing 
six‐foot high wall to mitigate impact upon adjacent properties. 

 The proposed addition should not cause an  increase  in public services beyond what  is 
normal for a like use. 

 
Therefore, provided that the Planning Commission finds the existing six‐foot wall adequate as a 
land use buffer and the alternative location of landscaping acceptable, we recommend Special 
Use  and  preliminary  site  plan  approval.  The  applicant  may  be  required  to  make  site 
improvements based on the review of the traffic engineer.  
 

 
 

 
 
#    225‐1601 
 
cc:  David Hardin, Applicant   

James Butler, PEA, Engineer 
Chip Faudie, Architect 



1



From: Chuck & Diane McCauley <cdrmac@comcast.net>
Sent: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 11:00 AM
To: Planning
Subject: Public Hearing February 9, 2016

I received the information on Public Hearing for Tuesday February 9, 2016.   
In regards to Korean United Methodist Church. 
I hope to be able to attend the hearing. 
  
but a few questions I have: 

 when do you project Dequindre to be widened and completed?  
 will the Church supply a light at the entrance of the Church.  On Sunday’s I know they have 

police directing traffic, I project they anticipate a light.   What entrance will this be placed?   
 if passed when will they start construction and estimate of it completed?  Will the construction 

take place in the North side of the Church?  

Thank You 
  
Chuck and Diane McCauley 
42458 Dequindre  
Sterling Heights, MI  48314 



1



From: Thomas J. Paonessa <thomas.j.paonessa@gm.com>
Sent: Wednesday, February 03, 2016 2:18 PM
To: Planning
Subject: Korean Church on Dequindre  Special Use 

Planning Department.  I am a neighbor 2 doors south of the Korean Church and have no issues with their addition to the 
north side of their building.  I do however have a request that they relocate the garbage dumpster to the North or west 
side of the property.   It is too close to my neighbors house and mine and they pick up very early in the morning.  Also 
not all their garbage makes it into the dumpster and flies around to our houses. Plesase consider this request. 
 
Thank You 
Tom Paonessa 
42489 Dequindre 
 
 

 
 
Nothing in this message is intended to constitute an electronic signature unless a specific statement to the 
contrary is included in this message.  
 
Confidentiality Note: This message is intended only for the person or entity to which it is addressed. It may 
contain confidential and/or privileged material. Any review, transmission, dissemination or other use, or taking 
of any action in reliance upon this message by persons or entities other than the intended recipient is prohibited 
and may be unlawful. If you received this message in error, please contact the sender and delete it from your 
computer.  



ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PEA, INC. THEY ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION

THAT THEY ARE NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR

COPIED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR

FURNISHING INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE

PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF PEA, INC. ALL COMMON

LAW RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE

HEREBY SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2015 PEA, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2015-199

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
N

E
 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
1
2
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

C
U

N
N

I
N

G
H

A
M

 
L

I
M

P
 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

3
9
3
0
0
 
W

E
S

T
 
T

W
E

L
V

E
 
M

I
L
E

 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2
0
0

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
 
4
8
3
3
1

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N

M
E

B
D

N
.

M
E

B
S

U
R

.
M

S
P

.
M

.
J
P

B

K
O

R
E

A
N

 
U

N
I
T

E
D

 
M

E
T

H
O

D
I
S

T
 
C

H
U

R
C

H

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct, Ste 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

t: 248.689.9090

f: 248.689.1044

www.peainc.com

PEA, Inc.

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
N

o
.

B
Y

DECEMBER 23, 2015

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

C-X.X

S
H

E
E

T
 
N

A
M

E

SCALE: 1" = XX'

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

 
P

E
R

 
C

I
T

Y
 
C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
2
/
4
/
1
6

K
M

K
1

M
E

B

C
O

V
E

R
 
S

H
E

E
T

SCALE: N/A

COVER




NO SCALE

LOCATION MAP



ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PEA, INC. THEY ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION

THAT THEY ARE NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR

COPIED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR

FURNISHING INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE

PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF PEA, INC. ALL COMMON

LAW RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE

HEREBY SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2015 PEA, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2015-199

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
N

E
 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
1
2
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

C
U

N
N

I
N

G
H

A
M

 
L

I
M

P
 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

3
9
3
0
0
 
W

E
S

T
 
T

W
E

L
V

E
 
M

I
L
E

 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2
0
0

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
 
4
8
3
3
1

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N

M
E

B
D

N
.

M
E

B
S

U
R

.
M

S
P

.
M

.
J
P

B

K
O

R
E

A
N

 
U

N
I
T

E
D

 
M

E
T

H
O

D
I
S

T
 
C

H
U

R
C

H

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct, Ste 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

t: 248.689.9090

f: 248.689.1044

www.peainc.com

PEA, Inc.

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
N

o
.

B
Y

DECEMBER 23, 2015

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

C-X.X

S
H

E
E

T
 
N

A
M

E

SCALE: 1" = XX'

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

 
P

E
R

 
C

I
T

Y
 
C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
2
/
4
/
1
6

K
M

K
1

M
E

B

SCALE: 1" = 30'

C-1.1

T
O

P
O

G
R

A
P

H
I
C

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y



ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PEA, INC. THEY ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION

THAT THEY ARE NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR

COPIED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR

FURNISHING INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE

PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF PEA, INC. ALL COMMON

LAW RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE

HEREBY SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2015 PEA, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2015-199

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
N

E
 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
1
2
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

C
U

N
N

I
N

G
H

A
M

 
L

I
M

P
 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

3
9
3
0
0
 
W

E
S

T
 
T

W
E

L
V

E
 
M

I
L
E

 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2
0
0

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
 
4
8
3
3
1

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N

M
E

B
D

N
.

M
E

B
S

U
R

.
M

S
P

.
M

.
J
P

B

K
O

R
E

A
N

 
U

N
I
T

E
D

 
M

E
T

H
O

D
I
S

T
 
C

H
U

R
C

H

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct, Ste 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

t: 248.689.9090

f: 248.689.1044

www.peainc.com

PEA, Inc.

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
N

o
.

B
Y

DECEMBER 23, 2015

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

C-X.X

S
H

E
E

T
 
N

A
M

E

SCALE: 1" = XX'

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

 
P

E
R

 
C

I
T

Y
 
C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
2
/
4
/
1
6

K
M

K
1

M
E

B

SCALE: 1" = 30'

C-2.0

O
V

E
R

A
L

L
 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N



ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PEA, INC. THEY ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION

THAT THEY ARE NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR

COPIED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR

FURNISHING INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE

PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF PEA, INC. ALL COMMON

LAW RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE

HEREBY SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2015 PEA, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2015-199

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
N

E
 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
1
2
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

C
U

N
N

I
N

G
H

A
M

 
L

I
M

P
 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

3
9
3
0
0
 
W

E
S

T
 
T

W
E

L
V

E
 
M

I
L
E

 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2
0
0

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
 
4
8
3
3
1

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N

M
E

B
D

N
.

M
E

B
S

U
R

.
M

S
P

.
M

.
J
P

B

K
O

R
E

A
N

 
U

N
I
T

E
D

 
M

E
T

H
O

D
I
S

T
 
C

H
U

R
C

H

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct, Ste 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

t: 248.689.9090

f: 248.689.1044

www.peainc.com

PEA, Inc.

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
N

o
.

B
Y

DECEMBER 23, 2015

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

C-X.X

S
H

E
E

T
 
N

A
M

E

SCALE: 1" = XX'

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

 
P

E
R

 
C

I
T

Y
 
C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
2
/
4
/
1
6

K
M

K
1

M
E

B

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

SCALE: 1" = 20'

C-2.1



ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PEA, INC. THEY ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION

THAT THEY ARE NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR

COPIED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR

FURNISHING INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE

PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF PEA, INC. ALL COMMON

LAW RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE

HEREBY SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2015 PEA, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2015-199

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
N

E
 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
1
2
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

C
U

N
N

I
N

G
H

A
M

 
L

I
M

P
 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

3
9
3
0
0
 
W

E
S

T
 
T

W
E

L
V

E
 
M

I
L
E

 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2
0
0

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
 
4
8
3
3
1

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N

M
E

B
D

N
.

M
E

B
S

U
R

.
M

S
P

.
M

.
J
P

B

K
O

R
E

A
N

 
U

N
I
T

E
D

 
M

E
T

H
O

D
I
S

T
 
C

H
U

R
C

H

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct, Ste 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

t: 248.689.9090

f: 248.689.1044

www.peainc.com

PEA, Inc.

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
N

o
.

B
Y

DECEMBER 23, 2015

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

C-X.X

S
H

E
E

T
 
N

A
M

E

SCALE: 1" = XX'

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

 
P

E
R

 
C

I
T

Y
 
C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
2
/
4
/
1
6

K
M

K
1

M
E

B

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
G

R
A

D
I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N

SCALE: 1" = 20'

C-3.1



ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PEA, INC. THEY ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION

THAT THEY ARE NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR

COPIED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR

FURNISHING INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE

PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF PEA, INC. ALL COMMON

LAW RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE

HEREBY SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2015 PEA, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2015-199

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
N

E
 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
1
2
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

C
U

N
N

I
N

G
H

A
M

 
L

I
M

P
 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

3
9
3
0
0
 
W

E
S

T
 
T

W
E

L
V

E
 
M

I
L
E

 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2
0
0

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
 
4
8
3
3
1

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N

M
E

B
D

N
.

M
E

B
S

U
R

.
M

S
P

.
M

.
J
P

B

K
O

R
E

A
N

 
U

N
I
T

E
D

 
M

E
T

H
O

D
I
S

T
 
C

H
U

R
C

H

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct, Ste 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

t: 248.689.9090

f: 248.689.1044

www.peainc.com

PEA, Inc.

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
N

o
.

B
Y

DECEMBER 23, 2015

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

C-X.X

S
H

E
E

T
 
N

A
M

E

SCALE: 1" = XX'

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

 
P

E
R

 
C

I
T

Y
 
C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
2
/
4
/
1
6

K
M

K
1

M
E

B

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
U

T
I
L

I
T

Y
 
P

L
A

N

SCALE: 1" = 20'

C-4.1



ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PEA, INC. THEY ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION

THAT THEY ARE NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR

COPIED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR

FURNISHING INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE

PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF PEA, INC. ALL COMMON

LAW RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE

HEREBY SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2015 PEA, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2015-199

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
N

E
 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
1
2
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

C
U

N
N

I
N

G
H

A
M

 
L

I
M

P
 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

3
9
3
0
0
 
W

E
S

T
 
T

W
E

L
V

E
 
M

I
L
E

 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2
0
0

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
 
4
8
3
3
1

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N

M
E

B
D

N
.

M
E

B
S

U
R

.
M

S
P

.
M

.
J
P

B

K
O

R
E

A
N

 
U

N
I
T

E
D

 
M

E
T

H
O

D
I
S

T
 
C

H
U

R
C

H

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct, Ste 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

t: 248.689.9090

f: 248.689.1044

www.peainc.com

PEA, Inc.

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
N

o
.

B
Y

DECEMBER 23, 2015

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

C-X.X

S
H

E
E

T
 
N

A
M

E

SCALE: 1" = XX'

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

 
P

E
R

 
C

I
T

Y
 
C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
2
/
4
/
1
6

K
M

K
1

M
E

B

N
O

T
E

S
 
A

N
D

 
D

E
T

A
I
L

S

SCALE: N/A

C-5.1



ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PEA, INC. THEY ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION

THAT THEY ARE NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR

COPIED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR

FURNISHING INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE

PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF PEA, INC. ALL COMMON

LAW RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE

HEREBY SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2015 PEA, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2015-199

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
N

E
 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
1
2
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

C
U

N
N

I
N

G
H

A
M

 
L

I
M

P
 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

3
9
3
0
0
 
W

E
S

T
 
T

W
E

L
V

E
 
M

I
L
E

 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2
0
0

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
 
4
8
3
3
1

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N

M
E

B
D

N
.

M
E

B
S

U
R

.
M

S
P

.
M

.
J
P

B

K
O

R
E

A
N

 
U

N
I
T

E
D

 
M

E
T

H
O

D
I
S

T
 
C

H
U

R
C

H

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct, Ste 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

t: 248.689.9090

f: 248.689.1044

www.peainc.com

PEA, Inc.

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
N

o
.

B
Y

DECEMBER 23, 2015

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

C-X.X

S
H

E
E

T
 
N

A
M

E

SCALE: 1" = XX'

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

 
P

E
R

 
C

I
T

Y
 
C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
2
/
4
/
1
6

K
M

K
1

M
E

B

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
/
 
T

R
E

E
 
P

R
E

S
E

R
V

A
T

I
O

N
 
P

L
A

N

SCALE: 1" = 20'

L-1.1

= DECIDUOUS TREES

= EVERGREEN TREES

KEY

= SHRUBS AND PERENNIALS PER OWNER 

= EXISTING TREES TO BE REMOVED

= RESTORED SEED LAWN/ WITH MATT

 AND IRRIGATION  IF PRESENT(CONTRACTOR

SHALL REPLACE  DISTURBED AREAS WITH

LAWN. FIELD VERIFY LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE.)

= EXISTING TREE/ SHRUBS TO REMAIN WITH

TREE PROTECTION FENCE

= STORM WATER SEED MIX 

   BY CARDNO JF NEW  574-586-2412

  W/ STAKED MULCH BLANKET ON SLOPES 

(6 TREES TO BE REMOVED AND REPLACED)







Korean United Methodist Church Addition
Pitched Roof



Korean United Methodist Church Addition
Pitched Roof



Korean United Methodist Church Addition
Pitched Roof



  PC 2015.02.09 
  Agenda Item # 6 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE: February 4, 2016 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SC JPLN 2015-0016) – 

Proposed Estates at Willowbrook, 28 units/lots, East side of John R, South of 
Wattles, Section 24, Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 

 
 
The petitioner Langham Investments LLC submitted the above referenced Preliminary Site Plan 
Approval application for a 28-unit site condominium. The property is currently zoned R-1C (One 
Family Residential) District. The Planning Commission is responsible for granting Preliminary Site 
Plan Approval for site condominium applications. 
 
The application was considered by Planning Commission at the January 26, 2016 Regular 
meeting. The Planning Commission postponed the item and asked the applicant “to come back 
with a maintenance plan for the outlot and to consider the buffer along the eastern property line”. 
  
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the project. CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire. City Management supports 
the findings of fact contained in the report and recommends approval of the project, as noted. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3. Minutes (draft) from January 26, 2016 Planning Commission Regular meeting (excerpt). 
4. Public Comment 

 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ Estates at Willowbrook Site Condominium 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Estates at Willowbrook  Sec 24_JPLN 2015-0016\PC Memo 02 09 2016.docx 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SC JPLN 2015-0016) – Proposed 
Estates at Willowbrook, 28 units/lots, East side of John R, South of Wattles, Section 24, 
Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-02- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Condominium Approval, pursuant to Article 8 and 
Section 10.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for Estates at Willowbrook Site 
Condominium, 28 units/lots, East side of John R, South of Wattles, Section 24, Currently 
Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District, be granted, subject to the following: 
 
____________________________________________________________) or  
 

(denied, for the following reasons: _________________________________) or 
 

(postponed, for the following reasons:_________________________________) 
 
 
Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Estates at Willowbrook  Sec 24_JPLN 2015-0016\Proposed Resolution 2016 02 09.doc 



Estates at Willowbrook S.C.

1: 3,000

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2500500 500Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

11/25/2015

Legend:

Aerial

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



Estates at Willowbrook S.C.

1: 3,200

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2670533 533Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

11/25/2015

Legend:

Form Based Zoning 2

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road

(MR) Maple Road

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MF) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales

Aerial

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



 
 
  Date:  January 19, 2016 
    February 2, 2016 
 
 

Site Condominium Plan 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 

 
 

 

 
Applicant:  Mondrian Properties 
 
Project Name:  Estates at Willowbrook 
 
Plan Date:  February 1, 2016 
   
Location:  East side John R Road, south of Wattles. 
 
Zoning:  R1‐C, One‐Family Residential District 
 
Action Requested:  Preliminary Site Condominium Approval 
 
Required Information:  Noted 
 
 

PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 

 
We are  in receipt of a site condominium application that  includes a preliminary site plan, topographic 
survey, grading plan, utility plan, tree preservation plan and tree  inventory, elevations and floor plans. 
The  applicant  proposes  to  combine  eight  (8)  existing R1‐C  lots  to  create  a  twenty‐eight  (28)  lot  site 
condominium project.   Six (6) of the current R1‐C lots are improved with a home.  Two (2) current parcels 
are vacant.   The total site area is 10.01 acres.   
 
The development will be served with new public roads off John R Road.   The development will connect 
to  the east with  the adjacent Wattles Square  subdivision via Dexter Drive.     Dexter Drive  is currently 
stubbed with a barricade.   Wattles Square subdivision was approved in 1987 with Dexter Drive stubbed 
in order to provide a future road connection should the parcel(s) in question be developed.   
 



Estates of Willowbrook  
February 2, 2016 

2 

The applicant has shown a 69’ x 108’ outlot, located in the southwest corner of the development.  The 
applicant has noted that this is an “outlot to be reserved for possible future development.”  The 7,512 
sq.ft  lot  is undersized  to  the minimum  lot area  (10,500 sq/ft) and  lot width  (85’)  for  the district.   The 
applicant proposes to maintain the lot until such time as additional property can be added to it to make a 
conforming lot.   
 
The site has significant tree cover and wetland area.  The wetland area is not regulated by the DNR.  The 
site is zoned R‐1C and the proposed site condominium use is permitted by‐right.  
 
Location of subject site: 
 

 
 
 
Size of subject property: 
10.01 acres in area. 
 
Current use of subject property: 
The subject property has six (6) existing single‐family homes. 
 
Proposed use of subject site: 
The proposed use is single‐family residential site condominium. 
   



Estates of Willowbrook  
February 2, 2016 

3 

Current Zoning: 

The property is currently zoned R‐1C, One Family Residential District. 
 
Surrounding Property Details: 
 

Direction  Zoning  Use 

North   Neighborhood Node  Office, and Vacant  

South  R‐1C, One‐family Residential District  Single‐family homes 

East  R‐1C, One‐family Residential District  Single‐family homes 

West  R‐1C, One‐family Residential District  Single‐family homes, Open space 

 

PREVIOUS PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW 

 
The item was last reviewed by the Planning Commission at their January 26, 2015 meeting.  The item 
was tabled to allow the applicant to address the following:  
 
1. Additional Tree Preservation and Buffering along eastern property line 
 

As shown on Sheet 3, the applicant has resurveyed the trees along the eastern property line and 
notes that they have located an additional thirty‐eight (38) trees that are larger than 10‐inches.  
Thirty‐three (33) of those trees are within the 25‐foot wide tree preservation belt along the eastern 
property line.  In total, the applicant plans to preserve a total of approximately fifty‐four (54) trees 
along the eastern property line and approximately twenty‐three (23) trees along the northern 
property line.   
 

Items to be addressed:  None.   
 
2. Maintenance and Control of Outlot 

 
The applicant has submitted a Master Deed that outlines the maintenance and control of the outlot.  
The Master Deed will be reviewed by the City Attorney’s office.   
 

Items to be addressed:  None.   
 
3. Provide temporary turnaround at end of Sandpiper Drive and Macaw Drive. 
 

The applicant has provided a temporary turnaround at the end of Sandpiper Drive and Macaw Drive.   
The turnarounds have been reviewed by the fire department and find them satisfactory.   
 

Items to be addressed:  None.   
 
4. Widen John R. sidewalk to 8 feet. 

 
The applicant has widened John R. sidewalk to 8 feet.    
 

Items to be addressed:  None.   
   



Estates of Willowbrook  
February 2, 2016 

4 

5. Provide greater tree species variety and consider additional tree preservation.  
 
The applicant has increased the tree variety.  They are providing four (4) varieties of deciduous, and 
two (2) varieties of coniferous.   

 
Items to be addressed:  None.   
 
6. Resubmit floor plans for final site plan. 
 

The applicant has resubmitted floor plans that meet the R‐1C zoning requirements. 
 

Items to be addressed: None 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
We  recommend  preliminary  Site  Plan  approval  of  the  Estates  at  Willowbrook  site  condominium 
development.  
 
 
 

 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 26, 2016 
   
 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 
 
8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number JPLN2015-0016) – Proposed Estates at 

Willowbrook, 28 units/lots, East side of John R, South of Wattles, Section 24, Currently Zoned 
R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reported on the Preliminary Site Condominium Plan application for Estates at 
Willowbrook specifically addressing the non-regulated wetlands, buffer of trees along the 
northern and eastern property lines, connection to the east with adjacent Wattles Square 
subdivision and the outlot in the southeast corner. Mr. Carlisle recommended Preliminary 
Site Plan approval of the application subject to the conditions as identified in his report dated 
January 20, 2016. 
 
Present were Nathan Robinson of Horizon Engineering and Joseph Maniaci of Mondrian 
Properties. 
 
There was discussion on: 
 Tree preservation along northern and eastern borders. 
 Interior landscaping. 
 Tree inventory; existing vegetation and brush. 
 Proposed landscaping as relates to the proposed Woodland Protection ordinance. 
 Stormwater management; drainage. 
 Maintenance responsibility of outlot. 

 
Mr. Savidant said maintenance of the outlot would be addressed through the Site 
Condominium Master Deed and Bylaws required to be filed and recorded prior to Final Site 
Plan approval. He addressed the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) 
wetlands determination and regulations. 
 
Chair Edmunds opened the floor for public comment.  
 
Pete Wilkins, 3905 Wayfarer, addressed the drainage of water, tree preservation and clearing 
of brush. 
 
Paul Leitheiser, 3897 Wayfarer, addressed the tree inventory and asked if the developer 
would cut down the existing cottonwood tree on site. 
 
Fred Przybysz, 3842 Wayfarer, expressed traffic concerns with the opening of Dexter. He 
said a traffic problem exists now in Wattles Square subdivision that he has addressed with 
the Police Department. There is congestion with parked cars in the area of the path that 
connects to Barnard Elementary. 
 
Kelly Martin, 3884 Fairfax, expressed concerns with opening Dexter as relates to traffic, 
crime and safety. 
 
Chair Edmunds closed the floor. 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 26, 2016 
   
 
 

Discussion continued on landscaping and the outlot as relates to maintenance. 
 
Mr. Maniaci said he would comply with the conditions identified in the Planning Consultant 
report. He offered to cut down the cottonwood tree as requested by the homeowner during 
public comment. Mr. Maniaci offered no additional landscaping; he said the proposed site 
plan meets more than the minimum landscaping requirements. 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-01-   
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by:  
 
RESOLVED, That  Preliminary Site Condominium Approval, pursuant to Article 8 and Section 
10.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for Estates at Willowbrook Site Condominium, 
28 units/lots, East side of John R, South of Wattles, Section 24, Currently Zoned R-1C (One 
Family Residential) District, be granted, subject to the following: 
 

1. Clarify maintenance responsibility for outlot prior to Final Site Plan Approval. 
2. Provide temporary turnaround at end of Sandpiper Drive and Macaw Drive. 
3. Widen John R sidewalk to 8 feet. 
4. Provide greater tree species variety.  
5. Resubmit floor plans for Final Site Plan. 

 
Mr. Motzny advised the applicant he could request a postponement of the matter until a full 
Board is present. 
 
Mr. Maniaci asked to postpone the item to the next Planning Commission meeting. 
 
(Motion on the floor failed for lack of support.) 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-01-007 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the item to the next meeting. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
The Board asked the applicant to come back with a maintenance plan for the outlot and to 
consider the buffer along the eastern property line. 
 
Roll call on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Faison, Kuppa 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



1



From: Pete Wilkins <pete.wilkins.umich@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, February 04, 2016 11:48 PM
To: Planning
Subject: February 9th planning meeting

Hello council members, 
 
My name is Pete Wilkins. I reside at 3905 Wayfarer Dr. in the Wattles Square subdivision (Lot 8) to the East of the 
proposed site for the Estates at Willowbrook project. 
 
I wanted to share with you some views of the tree covered area that will be mostly clear cut to make way for this 
project. It is one thing to look at black and white drawings and plans, but to truly appreciate the beauty of this area you 
have to see it with your own eyes. 
 
Here is a small collection of images/video I’ve taken over the years while living here. 
 
Most of these tall mature trees fall outside the boundaries of the proposed miniscule 25ft. preservation zone. This 
beautiful backdrop will all but disappear when they begin construction. 
 
I grew up in Royal Oak where the trees tower over everything. Being surrounded by big beautiful trees makes me feel 
connected to nature. I think that is one of the things that makes Michigan such a great place to live. 
 
I understand that this land needs to be better developed than the current homes on this site, but I urge you to push for 
plans that better preserve the natural beauty of this area. I believe that will make it a better place to live for residents of 
both subdivisions. 
 
Thank you for your time, 
 
Pete Wilkins  



Re: Public Comment from Pete Wilkins 
Agenda Item 6. Preliminary Site Plan Review – Estates at Willowbrook 

 
 
The link of images/video in Mr. Wilkins email message was not convertible to include in 
the agenda packet. 
 
Please note Mr. Wilkins’ email with the link is being forwarded to Planning Commission 
members for viewing prior to the meeting. 
 
 
Kathy Czarnecki 
 
 



  P.O. Box 182158 
Shelby Twp., MI 48318 

  Phone 586.453.8097 
Fax 586.580.0053 

 

 
    

 
 
February 2, 2016 
 
 
 
Planning Department 
City of Troy 
500 West Big Beaver Road 
Troy, Michigan 48084 
 
Re: Revised Site Plan 

Proposed “Estates at Willowbrook” Site Condominium 
  
Dear City of Troy Planning Department: 
 
Attached to this letter are two (2) sets of the Site Plan drawings for the above-
referenced Site Condominium project “Estates at Willowbrook” on John R Road 
in Section 24.  These plans have been revised in order to address the 
recommendations contained within the review letter dated January 20, 2016 by 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. and the discussions which took place during 
the Planning Commission meeting held on January 26, 2016.  The following 
summary is provided in order to direct your attention to the revisions included in 
the plans. 
 

1. The Outlot is to be designated as a “convertible area” on the site 
condominium’s master deed.  The notation on the Site Plan has been 
updated.  Draft language from the Applicant’s legal counsel is also 
included as a separate attachment to further demonstrate the intent. 

 
2. Temporary turnarounds have been provided at the south end of Sandpiper 

Drive and the north end of Macaw Drive.  All Site Plan sheets have been 
updated. 
 

3. The existing five (5) feet wide sidewalk along John R Road is shown on all 
sheets to be removed and replaced with an eight (8) feet wide sidewalk. 
 

4. Additional tree species have been introduced to the Landscape Plan for 
both the coniferous and deciduous trees. 



 
Page 2 of 2 

February 2, 2016 
Planning Department, City of Troy 
Re:  Revised Site Plan for “Pinery Woods” Site Condominium 

 
 
 

5. Two (2) sets of building plans are included.   
 
The previous set of plans for the shallow units is to be modified as 
necessary during the building permit stage to ensure that all parts of the 
structure, including cantilevered first- and second-floor areas, are 
contained within the building envelope.  This set of plans is marked-up 
accordingly to demonstrate how that will most likely be achieved.   
 
An additional set of building plans for the narrower but deeper units is also 
provided to show that additional floor plans are available for the varied 
building envelope sizes. 

 
Lastly, the Surveyor located an additional thirty-eight (38) trees which are larger 
than ten (10) inches in diameter along the eastern boundary line.  Thirty-three 
(33) of these trees fall within the proposed twenty-five (25) feet wide tree 
preservation belt.  Updated Topographic Survey and Tree Inventory drawings, as 
well as updated Site Plan drawings, are provided. 
 
Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or concerns. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Nathan P. Robinson, P.E. 
President 
nrobinson@horizoneng.net 
 
cc.: Joseph Maniaci, Mondrian Properties 
 
attachments 



PROPOSED MASTER DEED LANGUAGE FOR ESTATES AT WILLOWBROOK 

  CONVERTIBLE AREAS 

 

Section 1.  Designation of Convertible Areas for Modification of Units and Common Elements.  

All Units and General Common Elements in the Project are Convertible Areas within which the individual 

Units  and General Common  Elements may be  enlarged or  reduced  in  size  and modified  as provided 

herein.   

Section 2.  Developer's Right to Modify Units and Elements.  Developer reserves the right, in its 

sole discretion, during  a period ending no  later  than 6  years  from  the date of  recording  this Master 

Deed, to modify the size, design, location and other attributes of individual Units and General Common 

Elements within Convertible Areas.   

Section 3.  Designation of Convertible Areas for the Conversion of a General Common Element 

into  a  Condominium Unit.    The General  Common  Element  area  located  at  the  Southeast  corner  of 

Macaw Drive and Dexter Drive (and noted Exhibit B hereto) is here by designated as a Convertible Area 

which may be converted  into a Unit,  if and when  the Developer acquires  the property  located  to  the 

South of  this Project.   The Association shall maintain  this Convertible Area along with all of  the other 

General Common Elements pursuant to this Master Deed and the Condominium Bylaws. 

Section 4.   Developer’s Right  to Convert General Common Element Convertible Area  into  a 

Unit.   Developer reserves the right,  in  its sole discretion, during a period ending no  later than 6 years 

from the date of recording this Master Deed to convert the Convertible Area  located at the Southeast 

corner of Macaw Drive and Dexter Drive  into a Unit,  if and when the Developer acquires the property 

located to the South of this Project.   

Section 5.   Compatibility of  Improvements.   All  improvements,  if any, constructed within  the 

Convertible  Areas  described  above  shall  be  reasonably  compatible with  the  structures  on  the  other 

portion of the Condominium Project.  No improvements, other than as above indicated, may be created 

on the Convertible Areas. 

Section 6.   Amendment of Master Deed.   Modifications within this Condominium Project shall 

be given effect by an appropriate amendment to the Master Deed in the manner provided by law, which 

amendment shall be prepared by and at the discretion of the Developer or  its successors and  in which 

the percentages of value  set  forth  in Article V hereof  shall be proportionately  readjusted  in order  to 

preserve a total value of 100% for the entire Project resulting from such amendment or amendments to 

this Master Deed.    The  precise  determination  of  the  readjustments  in  percentages  of  value  shall  be 

made within the sole  judgment of Developer.   Such readjustments, however, shall reflect a continuing 

reasonable relationship among percentages of value based upon the method of original determination 

of percentages of value for the Project. 

Section 7.     Consent of Interested Persons.   All of the Co‐owners and mortgagees of Units and 

other persons  interested or to become  interested  in the Project from time to time shall be deemed to 

have irrevocably and unanimously consented to such amendment or amendments to this Master Deed 

to effectuate  the  foregoing and  to any proportionate  reallocation of percentages of value of existing 



Units which Developer or its successors may determine necessary in conjunction with such amendment 

or amendments.   All such  interested persons  irrevocably appoint Developer or  its successors as agent 

and attorney for the purpose of execution of such amendment or amendments to the Master Deed and 

all other documents necessary to effectuate the foregoing. 

 

 









Tag No. Common Name Botanical Name DBH Condition Remove?

311 ELM ULMUS SP. 9 GOOD YES

312 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD YES

313 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD YES

314 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

315 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD YES

316 OAK SP. QUERCUS SP. 7 GOOD YES

317 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD YES

318 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD YES

319 CRABAPPLE MALUS SP. 5x3 GOOD YES

320 ELM ULMUS SP. 10 GOOD YES

321 ELM ULMUS SP. 7 GOOD YES

322 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

323 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD YES

324 ELM ULMUS SP. 8 GOOD YES

325 ELM ULMUS SP. 8 GOOD YES

326 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD YES

327 WALNUT JUGLANS SP. 6 GOOD YES

328 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6x2 GOOD YES

329 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 POOR YES

330 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

331 WALNUT JUGLANS SP. 4 GOOD YES

332 WALNUT JUGLANS SP. 8 GOOD YES

333 WALNUT JUGLANS SP. 10 GOOD YES

334 MULBERRY MORUS SP. 6x2 GOOD YES

335 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 5 POOR YES

336 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD YES

337 CRABAPPLE MALUS SP. 5x2 GOOD YES

338 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD YES

339 WALNUT JUGLANS SP. 10 POOR YES

340 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

341 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD YES

342 MULBERRY MORUS SP. 7 GOOD YES

343 MULBERRY MORUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

344 ELM ULMUS SP. 8 GOOD YES

345 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD YES

346 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD YES

347 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD YES

348 ELM ULMUS SP. 7 GOOD YES

349 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD YES

350 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD YES

351 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD YES

352 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD YES

353 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD YES

354 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD YES

355 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD YES

356 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD YES

357 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD YES

358 CRABAPPLE MALUS SP. 5x2 GOOD YES

359 ELM ULMUS SP. 7 GOOD YES

360 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD YES

361 ELM ULMUS SP. 7 GOOD YES

362 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

363 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD YES

364 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD YES

365 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD YES

366 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD YES

367 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

368 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD YES

369 ELM ULMUS SP. 8 GOOD YES

370 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD YES

371 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

372 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD YES

373 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD YES

374 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 9 GOOD YES

375 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD YES

376 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD YES

377 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

378 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD NO

379 ELM ULMUS SP. 7 GOOD NO

380 ELM ULMUS SP. 8 POOR NO

381 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD NO

382 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD NO

383 ELM ULMUS SP. 7 GOOD NO

384 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD NO

385 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD YES

386 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD YES

387 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD YES

388 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD YES

389 ELM ULMUS SP. 10 GOOD YES

390 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD YES

391 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD YES

392 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD YES

393 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD YES

394 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD YES

395 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD YES

396 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD YES

397 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD YES

398 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD YES

399 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD YES

400 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD YES

401 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD YES

402 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD YES

403 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 9 GOOD NO

404 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD YES

405 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD NO

406 ELM ULMUS SP. 10 GOOD NO

407 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD NO

408 ELM ULMUS SP. 9 GOOD YES

409 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD NO

410 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD NO

411 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD YES

Tag No. Common Name Botanical Name DBH Condition Remove?

412 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

413 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD YES

414 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD YES

415 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD YES

416 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7x3 GOOD YES

417 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD YES

418 ELM ULMUS SP. 8 GOOD YES

419 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD YES

420 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD YES

421 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD YES

422 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD YES

423 ELM ULMUS SP. 8 GOOD YES

424 ELM ULMUS SP. 9 GOOD YES

425 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 9 GOOD YES

426 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD YES

427 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD YES

428 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD YES

429 ELM ULMUS SP. 8 GOOD YES

430 ELM ULMUS SP. 10 GOOD YES

431 CRABAPPLE MALUS SP. 9 GOOD YES

432 PEAR PYRUS SP. 10 GOOD YES

433 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

434 ELM ULMUS SP. 7 GOOD YES

435 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 GOOD YES

436 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 4 GOOD YES

437 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD YES

438 HAWTHORN CRATAGEUS SP. 6 GOOD YES

439 HAWTHORN CRATAGEUS SP. 6 GOOD YES

440 HAWTHORN CRATAGEUS SP. 4x2 GOOD YES

441 HAWTHORN CRATAGEUS SP. 4x2 GOOD YES

442 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD YES

443 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8x2 GOOD YES

444 ELM ULMUS SP. 9 GOOD YES

445 ELM ULMUS SP. 10 GOOD YES

446 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD YES

447 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

448 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD YES

449 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD YES

450 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD YES

451 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD YES

452 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD YES

453 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8x2 GOOD YES

454 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD YES

455 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD YES

456 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD YES

457 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD YES

458 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8x2 GOOD YES

459 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6x2 GOOD YES

460 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

461 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

462 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD YES

463 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD YES

464 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD YES

465 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

466 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

467 ELM ULMUS SP. 10 GOOD YES

468 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD YES

469 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

470 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD YES

471 ELM ULMUS SP. 8 GOOD YES

472 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD YES

473 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 10 GOOD YES

474 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD YES

475 ELM ULMUS SP. 9 GOOD YES

476 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

477 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

478 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD YES

479 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD YES

480 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD NO

481 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD NO

482 ELM ULMUS SP. 8 GOOD NO

483 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 9 GOOD NO

484 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD NO

485 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD YES

486 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

487 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

488 HAWTHORN CRATAGEUS SP. 5 GOOD NO

489 ELM ULMUS SP. 7 GOOD YES

490 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD YES

491 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

492 ELM ULMUS SP. 7 GOOD YES

493 PINE PINUS SP. 10 GOOD YES

494 PINE PINUS SP. 9 GOOD YES

495 HAWTHORN CRATAGEUS SP. 6 POOR YES

496 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 9 GOOD YES

497 PINE PINUS SP. 10 GOOD YES

498 PINE PINUS SP. 10 GOOD YES

499 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 9 GOOD YES

500 (TAG NOT USED) YES

501 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD YES

502 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6x2 GOOD YES

503 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD YES

504 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8x2 GOOD YES

505 ELM ULMUS SP. 9 GOOD YES

506 PINE PINUS SP. 10 GOOD YES

507 PINE PINUS SP. 10 GOOD YES

508 PINE PINUS SP. 10 GOOD YES

509 PINE PINUS SP. 4 GOOD YES

510 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD YES

511 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD YES

512 WALNUT JUGLANS SP. 4 GOOD YES

513 ELM ULMUS SP. 8 GOOD YES

Tag No. Common Name Botanical Name DBH Condition Remove?

514 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD YES

515 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 7 GOOD YES

516 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 5 GOOD YES

517 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD YES

518 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD YES

519 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 GOOD YES

520 PINE PINUS SP. 7 GOOD YES

521 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD YES

522 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 5 GOOD YES

523 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 4 GOOD YES

524 PINE PINUS SP. 7 GOOD YES

525 MULBERRY MORUS SP. 7 GOOD YES

526 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 4 GOOD YES

527 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 4 GOOD YES

528 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 4 GOOD YES

529 PINE PINUS SP. 7 GOOD YES

530 PINE PINUS SP. 10 GOOD YES

531 PINE PINUS SP. 8 GOOD YES

532 PINE PINUS SP. 8 GOOD YES

533 PINE PINUS SP. 10 GOOD YES

534 PINE PINUS SP. 10 GOOD YES

535 PINE PINUS SP. 9 GOOD YES

536 PINE PINUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

537 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 5 GOOD YES

538 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 5 GOOD YES

539 WALNUT JUGLANS SP. 5 GOOD YES

540 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 4x2 GOOD YES

541 WALNUT JUGLANS SP. 5 GOOD YES

542 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 GOOD YES

543 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD YES

544 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD YES

545 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 9 GOOD YES

546 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD YES

547 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD YES

548 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD YES

549 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 GOOD YES

550 PINE PINUS SP. 9 GOOD YES

551 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD YES

552 PINE PINUS SP. 10 GOOD YES

553 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD YES

554 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 5 GOOD YES

555 PINE PINUS SP. 9 GOOD YES

556 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 7 GOOD YES

557 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD YES

558 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD YES

559 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD YES

560 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD YES

561 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD YES

562 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD YES

563 BASSWOOD TILIA SP. 8 GOOD YES

564 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD YES

565 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD YES

566 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD YES

567 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 7 GOOD YES

568 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD YES

569 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 10 GOOD YES

570 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 7 GOOD YES

571 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD YES

572 HICKORY CARYA SP. 5 GOOD YES

573 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD YES

574 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD YES

575 ELM ULMUS SP. 7 GOOD YES

576 ELM ULMUS SP. 7 GOOD YES

577 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 6 GOOD YES

578 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 10 GOOD YES

579 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD YES

580 HAWTHORN CRATAGEUS SP. 7 POOR NO

581 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD YES

582 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD YES

583 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD YES

584 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD YES

585 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 8 GOOD YES

586 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD YES

587 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD YES

588 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD YES

589 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 GOOD YES

590 WALNUT JUGLANS SP. 5 GOOD YES

591 WALNUT JUGLANS SP. 5 GOOD YES

592 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

593 BASSWOOD TILIA SP. 6x2 GOOD YES

594 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD YES

595 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 9 GOOD YES

596 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 8x2 GOOD YES

597 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD YES

598 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10x3 GOOD YES

599 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD YES

600 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD NO

Tag No. Common Name Botanical Name DBH Condition Remove?

201 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 9 GOOD YES

202 PINE PINUS SP. 10 GOOD YES

203 BASSWOOD TILIA SP. 10 GOOD YES

204 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 8 GOOD YES

205 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD YES

206 PINE PINUS SP. 8 GOOD NO

207 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 10 GOOD YES

208 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 10 GOOD YES

209 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 10 POOR YES

210 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 4 GOOD YES

211 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 4 GOOD YES

212 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

213 PINE PINUS SP. 7 GOOD NO

214 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 5 GOOD YES

215 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 7 GOOD YES

216 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 POOR YES

217 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 8 GOOD YES

218 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 GOOD NO

219 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD NO

220 MULBERRY MORUS SP. 6 GOOD NO

221 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 8x3 GOOD NO

222 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 5 GOOD NO

223 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 4 GOOD NO

224 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 5 GOOD NO

225 ELM ULMUS SP. 7 GOOD NO

226 ELM ULMUS SP. 10 GOOD NO

227 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 7 GOOD NO

228 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 GOOD NO

229 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 7x2 GOOD NO

230 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 4 GOOD NO

231 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 5x2 GOOD NO

232 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 10 GOOD NO

233 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 GOOD NO

234 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 9 GOOD NO

235 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6x2 GOOD NO

236 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 GOOD NO

237 APPLE MALUS SP. 7 GOOD YES

238 APPLE MALUS SP. 5x2 GOOD YES

239 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 GOOD NO

240 APPLE MALUS SP. 6 GOOD NO

241 ASH FRAXINUS SP. 4 POOR YES

242 APPLE MALUS SP. 6 GOOD YES

243 APPLE MALUS SP. 5x3 GOOD YES

244 HAWTHORN CRATAGEUS SP. 8 GOOD NO

245 MULBERRY MORUS SP. 6 GOOD YES

246 APPLE MALUS SP. 6 GOOD YES

247 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 GOOD NO

248 PEAR PYRUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

249 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD YES

250 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 7 GOOD YES

251 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD YES

252 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD YES

253 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD YES

254 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD YES

255 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD YES

256 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD YES

257 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD YES

258 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 POOR YES

259 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

260 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD YES

261 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

262 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 9 GOOD YES

263 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD YES

264 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD YES

265 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD YES

266 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD YES

267 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 9x2 GOOD YES

268 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 10 GOOD YES

269 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 4 GOOD YES

270 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 7 GOOD YES

271 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 5 GOOD YES

272 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD YES

273 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 8 GOOD YES

274 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 10 GOOD YES

275 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 GOOD YES

276 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 GOOD YES

277 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 8 GOOD YES

278 ASH FRAXINUS SP. 4 POOR YES

279 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 8 GOOD YES

280 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 7 GOOD YES

281 HAWTHORN CRATAGEUS SP. 6 GOOD YES

282 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 10X2 GOOD YES

283 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 4 GOOD YES

284 WALNUT JUGLANS SP. 10 GOOD YES

285 ELM ULMUS SP. 8 GOOD YES

286 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 8 GOOD YES

287 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 7 GOOD YES

288 CRABAPPLE MALUS SP. 6 GOOD YES

289 CRABAPPLE MALUS SP. 6 GOOD YES

290 CRABAPPLE MALUS SP. 4 GOOD YES

291 CRABAPPLE MALUS SP. 4x3 GOOD YES

292 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 7 GOOD YES

293 OAK SP. QUERCUS SP. 7 GOOD YES

294 CRABAPPLE MALUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

295 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD YES

296 CRABAPPLE MALUS SP. 5 GOOD YES

297 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD YES

298 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 9 GOOD YES

299 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD YES

300 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD YES

301 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD YES

302 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 9x2 GOOD YES

303 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD YES

304 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6x2 GOOD YES

305 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD YES

306 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD YES

307 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD YES

308 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD YES

309 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD YES

310 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD YES

Tag No. Common Name Botanical Name DBH Condition Remove?

931 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 14 GOOD NO

932 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 26 GOOD NO

933 MAPLE ACER SP. 12 GOOD NO

934 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 18 GOOD NO

935 MAPLE ACER SP. 16 GOOD NO

936 MAPLE ACER SP. 14 GOOD YES

937 MAPLE ACER SP. 14 GOOD NO

938 MAPLE ACER SP. 12 GOOD NO

939 MAPLE ACER SP. 12 GOOD NO

940 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 26 GOOD YES

941 MAPLE ACER SP. 12 GOOD NO

942 MAPLE ACER SP. 15 GOOD NO

943 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 30 GOOD NO

944 ELM ULMUS SP. 11 GOOD NO

945 ELM ULMUS SP. 14 GOOD YES

946 PINE PINUS SP. 12 GOOD NO

947 MAPLE ACER SP. 16 GOOD NO

948 MAPLE ACER SP. 14x2 GOOD NO

949 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 18 GOOD NO

950 MAPLE ACER SP. 12x2 GOOD NO

951 MAPLE ACER SP. 16 GOOD NO

952 MAPLE ACER SP. 14 GOOD NO

953 MAPLE ACER SP. 12x4 GOOD NO

954 MAPLE ACER SP. 14 GOOD NO

955 MAPLE ACER SP. 12x2 GOOD NO

956 MAPLE ACER SP. 15x2 GOOD NO

957 MAPLE ACER SP. 16 GOOD NO

958 ELM ULMUS SP. 18 GOOD NO

959 MAPLE ACER SP. 18 GOOD NO

960 MAPLE ACER SP. 12x2 GOOD NO

961 MAPLE ACER SP. 20 GOOD YES

962 MULBERRY MORUS SP. 14 GOOD NO

963 MAPLE ACER SP. 12 GOOD YES

964 MAPLE ACER SP. 14 GOOD NO

965 MAPLE ACER SP. 11 GOOD NO

966 MAPLE ACER SP. 12 GOOD NO

967 MAPLE ACER SP. 15 GOOD NO

968 OAK QUERCUS SP. 16 GOOD NO







Tag No. Common Name Botanical Name DBH Condition

201 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 9 GOOD

202 PINE PINUS SP. 10 GOOD

203 BASSWOOD TILIA SP. 10 GOOD

204 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 8 GOOD

205 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD

206 PINE PINUS SP. 8 GOOD

207 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 10 GOOD

208 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 10 GOOD

209 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 10 POOR

210 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 4 GOOD

211 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 4 GOOD

212 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD

213 PINE PINUS SP. 7 GOOD

214 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 5 GOOD

215 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 7 GOOD

216 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 POOR

217 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 8 GOOD

218 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 GOOD

219 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD

220 MULBERRY MORUS SP. 6 GOOD

221 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 8x3 GOOD

222 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 5 GOOD

223 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 4 GOOD

224 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 5 GOOD

225 ELM ULMUS SP. 7 GOOD

226 ELM ULMUS SP. 10 GOOD

227 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 7 GOOD

228 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 GOOD

229 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 7x2 GOOD

230 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 4 GOOD

231 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 5x2 GOOD

232 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 10 GOOD

233 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 GOOD

234 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 9 GOOD

235 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6x2 GOOD

236 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 GOOD

237 APPLE MALUS SP. 7 GOOD

238 APPLE MALUS SP. 5x2 GOOD

239 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 GOOD

240 APPLE MALUS SP. 6 GOOD

241 ASH FRAXINUS SP. 4 POOR

242 APPLE MALUS SP. 6 GOOD

243 APPLE MALUS SP. 5x3 GOOD

244 HAWTHORN CRATAGEUS SP. 8 GOOD

245 MULBERRY MORUS SP. 6 GOOD

246 APPLE MALUS SP. 6 GOOD

247 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 GOOD

248 PEAR PYRUS SP. 5 GOOD

249 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD

250 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 7 GOOD

251 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD

252 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD

253 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD

254 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD

255 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD

256 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD

257 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD

258 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 POOR

259 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD

260 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD

261 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD

262 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 9 GOOD

263 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD

264 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD

265 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD

266 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD

267 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 9x2 GOOD

268 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 10 GOOD

269 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 4 GOOD

270 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 7 GOOD

271 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 5 GOOD

272 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD

273 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 8 GOOD

274 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 10 GOOD

275 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 GOOD

276 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 GOOD

277 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 8 GOOD

278 ASH FRAXINUS SP. 4 POOR

279 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 8 GOOD

280 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 7 GOOD

281 HAWTHORN CRATAGEUS SP. 6 GOOD

282 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 10X2 GOOD

283 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 4 GOOD

284 WALNUT JUGLANS SP. 10 GOOD

285 ELM ULMUS SP. 8 GOOD

286 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 8 GOOD

287 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 7 GOOD

288 CRABAPPLE MALUS SP. 6 GOOD

289 CRABAPPLE MALUS SP. 6 GOOD

290 CRABAPPLE MALUS SP. 4 GOOD

291 CRABAPPLE MALUS SP. 4x3 GOOD

292 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 7 GOOD

293 OAK SP. QUERCUS SP. 7 GOOD

294 CRABAPPLE MALUS SP. 5 GOOD

295 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD

296 CRABAPPLE MALUS SP. 5 GOOD

297 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD

298 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 9 GOOD

299 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD

300 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD

301 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD

302 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 9x2 GOOD

303 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD

304 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6x2 GOOD

305 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD

306 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD

307 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD

308 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD

309 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD

310 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD

Tag No. Common Name Botanical Name DBH Condition

311 ELM ULMUS SP. 9 GOOD

312 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD

313 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD

314 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD

315 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD

316 OAK SP. QUERCUS SP. 7 GOOD

317 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD

318 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD

319 CRABAPPLE MALUS SP. 5x3 GOOD

320 ELM ULMUS SP. 10 GOOD

321 ELM ULMUS SP. 7 GOOD

322 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD

323 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD

324 ELM ULMUS SP. 8 GOOD

325 ELM ULMUS SP. 8 GOOD

326 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD

327 WALNUT JUGLANS SP. 6 GOOD

328 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6x2 GOOD

329 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 POOR

330 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD

331 WALNUT JUGLANS SP. 4 GOOD

332 WALNUT JUGLANS SP. 8 GOOD

333 WALNUT JUGLANS SP. 10 GOOD

334 MULBERRY MORUS SP. 6x2 GOOD

335 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 5 POOR

336 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD

337 CRABAPPLE MALUS SP. 5x2 GOOD

338 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD

339 WALNUT JUGLANS SP. 10 POOR

340 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD

341 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD

342 MULBERRY MORUS SP. 7 GOOD

343 MULBERRY MORUS SP. 5 GOOD

344 ELM ULMUS SP. 8 GOOD

345 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD

346 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD

347 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD

348 ELM ULMUS SP. 7 GOOD

349 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD

350 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD

351 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD

352 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD

353 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD

354 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD

355 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD

356 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD

357 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD

358 CRABAPPLE MALUS SP. 5x2 GOOD

359 ELM ULMUS SP. 7 GOOD

360 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD

361 ELM ULMUS SP. 7 GOOD

362 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD

363 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD

364 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD

365 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD

366 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD

367 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD

368 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD

369 ELM ULMUS SP. 8 GOOD

370 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD

371 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD

372 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD

373 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD

374 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 9 GOOD

375 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD

376 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD

377 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD

378 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD

379 ELM ULMUS SP. 7 GOOD

380 ELM ULMUS SP. 8 POOR

381 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD

382 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD

383 ELM ULMUS SP. 7 GOOD

384 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD

385 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD

386 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD

387 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD

388 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD

389 ELM ULMUS SP. 10 GOOD

390 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD

391 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD

392 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD

393 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD

394 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD

395 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD

396 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD

397 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD

398 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD

399 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD

400 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD

401 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD

402 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD

403 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 9 GOOD

404 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD

405 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD

406 ELM ULMUS SP. 10 GOOD

407 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD

408 ELM ULMUS SP. 9 GOOD

409 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD

410 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD

411 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD

Tag No. Common Name Botanical Name DBH Condition

412 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD

413 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD

414 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD

415 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD

416 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7x3 GOOD

417 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD

418 ELM ULMUS SP. 8 GOOD

419 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD

420 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD

421 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD

422 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD

423 ELM ULMUS SP. 8 GOOD

424 ELM ULMUS SP. 9 GOOD

425 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 9 GOOD

426 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD

427 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD

428 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD

429 ELM ULMUS SP. 8 GOOD

430 ELM ULMUS SP. 10 GOOD

431 CRABAPPLE MALUS SP. 9 GOOD

432 PEAR PYRUS SP. 10 GOOD

433 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD

434 ELM ULMUS SP. 7 GOOD

435 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 GOOD

436 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 4 GOOD

437 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD

438 HAWTHORN CRATAGEUS SP. 6 GOOD

439 HAWTHORN CRATAGEUS SP. 6 GOOD

440 HAWTHORN CRATAGEUS SP. 4x2 GOOD

441 HAWTHORN CRATAGEUS SP. 4x2 GOOD

442 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD

443 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8x2 GOOD

444 ELM ULMUS SP. 9 GOOD

445 ELM ULMUS SP. 10 GOOD

446 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD

447 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD

448 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD

449 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD

450 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD

451 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD

452 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD

453 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8x2 GOOD

454 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD

455 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD

456 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD

457 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD

458 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8x2 GOOD

459 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6x2 GOOD

460 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD

461 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD

462 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD

463 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD

464 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD

465 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD

466 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD

467 ELM ULMUS SP. 10 GOOD

468 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD

469 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD

470 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD

471 ELM ULMUS SP. 8 GOOD

472 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD

473 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 10 GOOD

474 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD

475 ELM ULMUS SP. 9 GOOD

476 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD

477 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD

478 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD

479 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD

480 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD

481 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD

482 ELM ULMUS SP. 8 GOOD

483 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 9 GOOD

484 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD

485 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD

486 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD

487 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD

488 HAWTHORN CRATAGEUS SP. 5 GOOD

489 ELM ULMUS SP. 7 GOOD

490 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD

491 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD

492 ELM ULMUS SP. 7 GOOD

493 PINE PINUS SP. 10 GOOD

494 PINE PINUS SP. 9 GOOD

495 HAWTHORN CRATAGEUS SP. 6 POOR

496 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 9 GOOD

497 PINE PINUS SP. 10 GOOD

498 PINE PINUS SP. 10 GOOD

499 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 9 GOOD

500 (TAG NOT USED)

501 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD

502 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6x2 GOOD

503 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD

504 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8x2 GOOD

505 ELM ULMUS SP. 9 GOOD

506 PINE PINUS SP. 10 GOOD

507 PINE PINUS SP. 10 GOOD

508 PINE PINUS SP. 10 GOOD

509 PINE PINUS SP. 4 GOOD

510 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD

511 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD

512 WALNUT JUGLANS SP. 4 GOOD

513 ELM ULMUS SP. 8 GOOD

Tag No. Common Name Botanical Name DBH Condition

514 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD

515 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 7 GOOD

516 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 5 GOOD

517 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD

518 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD

519 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 GOOD

520 PINE PINUS SP. 7 GOOD

521 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD

522 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 5 GOOD

523 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 4 GOOD

524 PINE PINUS SP. 7 GOOD

525 MULBERRY MORUS SP. 7 GOOD

526 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 4 GOOD

527 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 4 GOOD

528 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 4 GOOD

529 PINE PINUS SP. 7 GOOD

530 PINE PINUS SP. 10 GOOD

531 PINE PINUS SP. 8 GOOD

532 PINE PINUS SP. 8 GOOD

533 PINE PINUS SP. 10 GOOD

534 PINE PINUS SP. 10 GOOD

535 PINE PINUS SP. 9 GOOD

536 PINE PINUS SP. 5 GOOD

537 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 5 GOOD

538 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 5 GOOD

539 WALNUT JUGLANS SP. 5 GOOD

540 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 4x2 GOOD

541 WALNUT JUGLANS SP. 5 GOOD

542 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 GOOD

543 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD

544 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD

545 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 9 GOOD

546 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD

547 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD

548 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD

549 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 GOOD

550 PINE PINUS SP. 9 GOOD

551 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD

552 PINE PINUS SP. 10 GOOD

553 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD

554 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 5 GOOD

555 PINE PINUS SP. 9 GOOD

556 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 7 GOOD

557 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD

558 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD

559 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD

560 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD

561 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD

562 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD

563 BASSWOOD TILIA SP. 8 GOOD

564 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 6 GOOD

565 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 7 GOOD

566 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD

567 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 7 GOOD

568 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD

569 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 10 GOOD

570 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 7 GOOD

571 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD

572 HICKORY CARYA SP. 5 GOOD

573 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD

574 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD

575 ELM ULMUS SP. 7 GOOD

576 ELM ULMUS SP. 7 GOOD

577 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 6 GOOD

578 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 10 GOOD

579 ELM ULMUS SP. 4 GOOD

580 HAWTHORN CRATAGEUS SP. 7 POOR

581 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD

582 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD

583 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD

584 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD

585 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 8 GOOD

586 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD

587 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 5 GOOD

588 ELM ULMUS SP. 6 GOOD

589 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 6 GOOD

590 WALNUT JUGLANS SP. 5 GOOD

591 WALNUT JUGLANS SP. 5 GOOD

592 ELM ULMUS SP. 5 GOOD

593 BASSWOOD TILIA SP. 6x2 GOOD

594 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 8 GOOD

595 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 9 GOOD

596 BOX ELDER ACER NEGUNDO 8x2 GOOD

597 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD

598 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10x3 GOOD

599 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 4 GOOD

600 MAPLE SP. ACER SP. 10 GOOD

Tag No. Common Name Botanical Name DBH Condition

931 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 14 GOOD

932 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 26 GOOD

933 MAPLE ACER SP. 12 GOOD

934 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 18 GOOD

935 MAPLE ACER SP. 16 GOOD

936 MAPLE ACER SP. 14 GOOD

937 MAPLE ACER SP. 14 GOOD

938 MAPLE ACER SP. 12 GOOD

939 MAPLE ACER SP. 12 GOOD

940 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 26 GOOD

941 MAPLE ACER SP. 12 GOOD

942 MAPLE ACER SP. 15 GOOD

943 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 30 GOOD

944 ELM ULMUS SP. 11 GOOD

945 ELM ULMUS SP. 14 GOOD

946 PINE PINUS SP. 12 GOOD

947 MAPLE ACER SP. 16 GOOD

948 MAPLE ACER SP. 14x2 GOOD

949 POPLAR POPULUS SP. 18 GOOD

950 MAPLE ACER SP. 12x2 GOOD

951 MAPLE ACER SP. 16 GOOD

952 MAPLE ACER SP. 14 GOOD

953 MAPLE ACER SP. 12x4 GOOD

954 MAPLE ACER SP. 14 GOOD

955 MAPLE ACER SP. 12x2 GOOD

956 MAPLE ACER SP. 15x2 GOOD

957 MAPLE ACER SP. 16 GOOD

958 ELM ULMUS SP. 18 GOOD

959 MAPLE ACER SP. 18 GOOD

960 MAPLE ACER SP. 12x2 GOOD

961 MAPLE ACER SP. 20 GOOD

962 MULBERRY MORUS SP. 14 GOOD

963 MAPLE ACER SP. 12 GOOD

964 MAPLE ACER SP. 14 GOOD

965 MAPLE ACER SP. 11 GOOD

966 MAPLE ACER SP. 12 GOOD

967 MAPLE ACER SP. 15 GOOD

968 OAK QUERCUS SP. 16 GOOD



2’-0” x 6’-0” 2’-0” x 6’-0” 2’-0” x 6’-0”

2’-0” x 6’-0”

2’-0” x 6’-0”

2’-6” x 6’-0” 1’-8
” x

 6’-0
”1’-8”x 6’-0”

2’-6” x 6’-0” 1’-8
” x

 6’-0
”1’-8”x 6’-0”

2’-6” x 6’-0” 1’-8
” x

 6’-0
”1’-8”x 6’-0”

2’-6” x 6’-0” 1’-8
” x

 6’-0
”1’-8”x 6’-0”

2 x 6 WALL

2 x 6 WALL2 x 6 WALL2 x 6 WALL2 x 6 WALL

2 x 6 WALL



HALF WALL

HALF WALL

2’-0” x 4’-6” 2’-0” x 4’-6” 2’-0” x 4’-6”

2’-0” x 4’-6”

2’-0” x 4’-6”

2 x 6 WALL



SADDLE 24” PAST 
BRICK FACE

SADDLE 24” PAST 
BRICK FACE

SADDLE 24” PAST 
BRICK FACE

SADDLE 24” PAST 
BRICK FACE





36
’-0

”

14
’-1

.5
” 4’
-1

.5
”

1’
-1

1”

36
’-0

”






	1. ROLL CALL
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	3. MINUTES
	January 26, 2016

	4. PUBLIC COMMENT
	5. PUBLIC HEARING - SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU JPLN2015-0020)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (2)
	Planning Consultant Report
	Public Comment (2)
	Site Plan Application

	6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SC JPLN2015-0016)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (2)
	Planning Consultant Report
	Minutes Excerpt January 26, 2016 
	Public Comment 
	Correspondence from Applicant
	Proposed Master Deed Language re Convertible Areas
	Site Plan Application

	7. PUBLIC COMMENT
	8. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT



